
1 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Meeting Agenda  
Continuum of Care (CoC) Board 

Wednesday, July 12, 2023 
2:00pm – 3:30pm 

Ventura County Office of Education 
5100 Adolfo Road, Camarillo 

 
Zoom Meeting ID: 871 1841 0223 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87118410223 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Board Comments 

3. CoC Staff Comments 

4. Public Comments: Public Comment is an opportunity for the public to participate in public meetings by 
addressing the Ventura County Continuum of Care Board in connection with one or more agenda or non-
agenda items. This meeting is subject to the Brown Act and public comments may be submitted by using 
one of the following options: 

 Email in advance of the meeting: If you wish to make public comment on an agenda item via email, please 
submit your comment via email by 4:30pm on the day prior to the Board meeting. Send emails to: 
venturacoc@ventura.org  Please indicate the agenda item you would like to speak on if relevant and 
whether you would like your message read by staff or you will be participating and would like to provide 
your comments during the live meeting.  

 During the meeting: Participants may use the chat function in zoom to indicate they would like to make a 
comment. Staff will call on participants during the public comment section of the meeting or during specific 
item following staff presentation of the item.  

 
Continuum of Care Governance Board Business 

 

5. Approval of Board Minutes from June 14, 2023. 
 

6. Receive a presentation from Ventura County Behavioral Health on the State Behavioral Health Bridge 
Housing Grant. 
 

7. Approval of the 2023 Rank and Review Policy for the Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
Continuum of Care Funding Competition and Authorization for Staff to Release the 2023 Letter of 
Intent for Continuum of Care Funded Projects and Release a Request for Proposals for New Projects. 

 

8. Receive and file a report on progress to end homelessness among Veterans in Ventura County.  
 

9. Receive and file a report on Ventura County CoC Committees, Workgroups and Staff updates.  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87118410223
mailto:venturacoc@ventura.org


Meeting Minutes
Continuum of Care (CoC) Board

Wednesday, June 14, 2023
2:00pm – 3:30pm

Ventura County Office of Education
5100 Adolfo Road, Camarillo

1. Call to Order: Dawn Dyer, Board Chair, called the meeting to order at 2:06pm.

Board Members: Emilio Ramirez, Manuel Minjares, Jack Edelstein, Juliana Gallardo, Stefany
Gonzalez, Paul Drevenstedt, Ingrid Hardy, Michael Nigh, Kevin Clerici, Dr. Sevet Johnson

Absent: Mara Malch, Pauline Preciado

Staff: Jennifer Harkey, Christy Madden, Felipe Flores, Morgan Saveliff

2. Board Comments: No comments.

3. CoC Staff Comments: Jenn Harkey, VC CoC Staff, shared that the YHDP application is in the final
stages, however, we are still recruiting youth with lived experience for the Youth Action Board
(YAB). Jenn further shared that the YAB is a requirement to apply for YHDP.

4. Public Comments: No comments.

Continuum of Care Governance Board Business

5. Approval of Board Minutes from May 10, 2023.
Kevin Clerici moved for approval, Dr. Sevet Johnson was second; Emilio Ramirez abstained; the
balance of the Board was in favor.

6. Receive a presentation from U.S. VETS on the Ventura Springs Veteran Housing Project.
Stephen Peck with U.S. VETS shared that, in partnership with A Community of Friends,
they are developing the Ventura Springs Veteran Housing Project which will provide
affordable housing for Veterans. Stephen presented on the project design and referral
process. The project will have a total of 122 affordable housing units for homeless and
low-income veterans and is anticipated to be ready for occupancy in November 2024.

Dr. Johnson expressed her support for the project and highlighted the community
commitment and collaboration that make this project possible. Jenn Harkey shared that
the CoC collaborates with VA partners to maintain the veteran by name list and the CoC
will assist with placement once the project is ready for referrals. Michael Nigh asked if
there will be preference for local veterans and Stephen shared that local veterans will be
prioritized. The board thanked Stephen for the presentation and expressed excitement
about the project.



7. Authorization to release a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the program interest accrued
for the Homeless Housing, Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) Program.
Jenn Harkey requested board authorization to release an RFP for the program interest
accrued for HHAP. Jenn explained that we have approximately $90,000 in interest accrued
as of March 21, 2023, and the RFP would only be for eligible applicants who were
previously awarded HHAP Program funding in rounds I, II, and III. Jenn further requested
that the board consider funding priorities for the RFP.

The board discussed funding priorities while taking into consideration the amount of
funding available. The board discussed how permanent housing should not be a priority
given the limited amount of funding available. Manuel Minjares mentioned that the
funding could be used for operational subsidies and mentioned that the Spirit of Santa
Paula specifically could benefit from these funds. Jack Edelstein motioned to approve the
RFP and to prioritize the following funding priorities: 1) Operational Subsidies, 2)
Prevention and Diversion, 3) Rapid Re-Housing; Manuel Minjares was second; all in favor.

8. Receive an update on the Ventura County Project Roomkey transition plan.
Felipe Flores provided an update on Project Roomkey. Felipe shared that since the start of
Project Room Key in March 2020, over 800 people have participated in the program, and
478 of those people have transitioned to successful housing destinations. Felipe shared
that the goal is for many of these clients to transition to PSH units that are coming
onboard hopefully by the end of the year.

Kevin Clerici asked when the next extension for PRK is expected to be announced. CoC
staff explained that extensions are being reviewed on a two-month basis and the next
extension request for continuation will be either the end of June or early July. If granted, it
would allow for a two-month extension from mid-July through mid-September.

Additional items not on the agenda: No further comment.

Next meeting set for July 12th, 2023
Meeting adjourned at 3:15pm.



______________________________________________________________________________

July 12,2023

VC CoC GovernanceBoard

SUBJECT:  R eceive a presenta�on from  Ventura County Behavioral Health on the S tate Behavioral Health 

BridgeHousingGrant

BACKGROUND: InApril2023,VenturaCounty BehavioralHealth(VCBH)appliedtotheS tateof

CaliforniaDepartm entofHealthCareS ervices(DHCS )fortheBehavioralHealthBridgeHousing(BHBH)

grant. T he total alloca�on available to Ventura County is approxim ately $13.3 m illion over a three year 

term . T he target popula�on includes those experiencing hom elessness w ith a serious behavioral health 

condi�on. T his funding is intended to serve CAR E Court par�cipants as authorized by S enate Bill 1338. 

T he eligible ac�vi�es include short term  housing, interim  housing up to tw o years, board and care, 

housing naviga�on and suppor�ve services. 

DISCUSSION: T heVCBH proposalincludestheexpansionofnon-congregateshelter,rentalassistance

for new  Hom ekey units, sca� ered site rental assistance, housing naviga�on and suppor�ve services w ith 

the addi�on of dedicated VCBH housing staff. CAR E Court par�cipants w ill be priori�zed w ith referrals 

from  the Coordinated Entry S ystem . N ew  Hom ekey P erm anent S uppor�ve Housing (P S H) units w ill be 

supportedthroughthisgrantatvarioussitesthroughouttheCounty.



7/7/2023

1

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH BRIDGE
HOUSING (BHBH)

Susan White Wood, VCBH Housing Manager
July 2023

2

What is BHBH?

State Funding & Oversite Agency Dept of Health Care Services (DHCS)

County Eligible Agency VCBH

Total Allocation for Ventura County $13,325,088

Applications Due to DHCS April 28, 2023

Award Announcements June 2023

Term 3 years (through June 30, 2027)

Target Populations Homeless w/SMI; CARE Court Participants
(SB 1338)

1

2



7/7/2023

2

3

BHBH RFA Funding Details

The focus of BHBH funds is “immediate” housing. BHBH funding
cannot be used to acquire property or to supplant other efforts
such as CalAim, MHSA, etc... 75% of the BHBH funding must be
spent on supportive bridge housing in the following categories:

• Short-term housing (less than 90 days);

• Interim housing (90 days up to 2 years w/1 year extension)

• Board & Care “Patches”;

• Housing Navigation and Supportive Services.
“The primary focus of the BHBH Program is to help people experiencing

homelessness who have serious behavioral health conditions that prevent them
from accessing help and moving out of homelessness.”

4

Community & Stakeholder Input

• VCBH conducted outreach to identify opportunities to fund
short-term and interim housing.

• BHBH beds must be available within 1 year of award
announcement (June 2023) and specifically identified Homekey
Round 3 projects & existing shelter operators as obvious
providers of such housing.

• CoC homeless market study in communities with Homekey
Round 3 proposals.

• In April 2023 VCBH met with homeless individuals*, presented
information on BHBH proposal and collected written surveys.

*Stakeholder input will be on-going.

3

4



7/7/2023

3

5

VCBH BHBH Proposal Details

VCBH is proposing a tapestry of short-term and interim bridge
housing options for people living with homelessness and diagnosed
with SMI as follows:

• Short-term (up to 90 days): 20 new shelter beds county-wide
(funding for both build-out and operations); motel rooms up to 3
weeks at 6 different locations throughout the county;

• Interim (90 days to 3 years): Site-specific rental assistance at
Homekey locations for 70 studio apartments; Scattered-site
rental assistance for 5-6 family apartments (2 and 3 BDRMS);

• Incentive payments for new ARF beds;

• 4.0 FTE VCBH dedicated housing staff to provide required
navigation and supportive services.

6

Target Population & Eligibility Requirements

Eligibility criteria for BHBH applicants:

• Homeless w/severe mental health diagnosis;

• Open to VCBH (treatment is voluntary);

• Referred through Coordinated Entry System (CES).

Additionally, CARE Court* participants will be prioritized and cities
where Homekey sites are located will prioritize local residency.

*Ventura County may implement CARE Court in 2024 at the earliest. CARE Court is
a court-ordered care plan for voluntary treatment of treatment resistant people
with SMI. https://www.chhs.ca.gov/care-act/

5

6



7/7/2023

4

7

THANK YOU!

QUESTIONS?

Susan.whitewood@ventura.org
(805) 981-3300

7



July 12,2023

VC CoC GovernanceBoard

SUBJECT: Approvalofthe2023 R ankandR eview P olicy fortheHousingandU rbanDevelopm ent(HU D)

Con�nuum  of Care Funding Com pe��on and Authoriza�on for S taff to R elease the 2023 L e� er of Intent 

for Con�nuum  of Care Funded P rojects and R elease a R equest for P roposals for N ew  P rojects. 

Background: T he County Execu�ve O ffi ce serves as the Ventura County Con�nuum  of Care (VC CoC) 

Collabora�ve Applicant and facilitates the annual CoC funding com pe��on. T he FY23 Con�nuum  of Care 

P rogram  Com pe��on N o�ce of Funding O pportunity (N O FO ) w as released on July 5, 2023 w ith the 

collabora�ve applica�on due to HU D by T hursday, S eptem ber 28, 2023.  T he final funding alloca�ons 

have not yet been released by HU D for the 2023 program  com pe��on. T he es�m ated annual renew al 

dem and funding for VC CoC is $3,305,977. HU D’s Hom eless P olicy P riori�es include the follow ing: 

 Endinghom elessnessforallpersonsby aligningstrategiesw iththeAL L IN :FederalS trategicP lanto

P reventandEndHom elessness

 U seaHousingFirstapproachtohelpindividualsandfam iliesm ovequickly intoperm anenthousing.

T his should include landlord engagem ent, rem oving barriers to entry and adop�ng client-centered 

servicem ethods.

 R educeunshelteredhom elessnessby exploringallavailableresources.CoCsshouldw orkw ithlaw

enforcem ent and local governm ents to elim inate policies and prac�ces that crim inalize 

hom elessness.

 Im provesystem perform anceandusetheCoordinatedEntry processtom akehom elessness

assistanceopen,inclusiveandtransparent.

 P artner w ith housing, health and service agencies to im prove how  all available resources are u�lized 

to end hom elessness. P artnerships w ith public and private healthcare organiza�ons, public housing 

authori�es, local w orkforce developm ent centers and tribal organiza�ons to m axim ize the use of 

m ainstream andothercom m unity-basedresources.

 Addressracialequity toensuresuccessfuloutcom esforallpersonsexperiencinghom elessness.

 Im proveassistancetoL GBT Q + individualsby ensuringprivacy,respect,safety andaccessregardless

of gender iden�ty or sexual orienta�on in projects.

 Include persons w ith lived exper�se and experience in the local planning and decision-m aking 

process. CoC leaders and stakeholders should priori�ze hiring people w ho have experienced 

hom elessness in areas w here their exper�se is needed. 

 Increase the affordable housing supply by com m unica�ng w ith jurisdic�on leaders about steps such 

as zoning and land use reform  that w ould increase the supply of affordable housing. 



Discussion: VC CoC S taff have updated a dra�  of the R ank and R eview  P olicy by u�lizing the HU D 

designed rank and review  tools. T his dra�  (Exhibit A) includes localpolicy forensuringtheVC CoC

consolidated applica�on and project level applica�ons are aligned and consistent w ith best prac�ces in 

delivering housing and services and strive to help the CoC achieve system w ide goals of preven�ng and 

endinghom elessness.T hepolicy includesscoringtem platesforcurrently fundedprojectsthatw illbe

seekingrenew alfundingincludingS afeHaven,R apidR e-Housing and P erm anent S uppor�ve Housing 

projects.T hepolicy detailsoutthescoringofindividualprojectsasw ellastheprocessforrankingthese

projects in the HU D required �ering system .

VC CoC S taff w ill release the L e� er of Intent (L O I) for renew al projects to determ inew hichprogram s

elect to renew  in the com pe��on(ExhibitB).T heL O Iw illbedueinAugust2023.T heVC CoC Data

P erform ance & Evalua�onCom m i� ee w ill w ork w ith staff to review , score and rank the L O Is for new  and 

renew alprojectsbasedonthescoringcriteriacontainedw ithinthe2023 R ankandR eview P olicy. T he

VC CoC Data Com m i� ee w ill bring recom m ended ranking of projects toVC CoC Boardw ith

recom m enda�ons of the prelim inary rankingofprojectsandany proposed realloca�on of fundsthat

m ay beaw ardedtonew projects.

Recommenda� ons:

1. Approvalofthe2023 Ventura County Con�nuum  of Care R ank and R eview  P olicy

2. Authoriza�on for staff to release the 2023 L e� er of Intent forCoC R enew alP rojects

3. Authoriza�on for staff to release a R equest for P roposals for N ew  P rojects



P age1 of14

Ventura County Continuum of Care (VC CoC)
2023 Ranking and Selection Criteria

HUD Continuum of Care Program Competition

T heVenturaCounty Continuum ofCare(VCCoC)w illusethefollow ingprocesstorankallprojects/applicationsin

the2023 HU D Continuum ofCareP rogram Com petition.

Section I: HU D CoC GeneralR equirem entsandP olicies

Section II: 2023 HU D CoC N oticeofFundingO pportunity (N O FO )Detail

Section III: VenturaCounty CoC P olicy onR eallocation,P rojectR anking,andT iers

Section IV: P rocessandCriteriaforR atingandR ankingR enew alP rojects

Section V: P rocessandCriteriaforR ankingN ew P rojects

Section VI: FinalP rojectP riority L istingandN otificationtoApplicants

Section VII: AppealP rocess



P age2 of14

Section I: HUD CoC General Requirements and Policies

T heU .S .Departm entofHousingandU rbanDevelopm ent(HU D)publishestheN oticeofFundingO pportunity
(N O FO )annually fortheContinuum ofCare(CoC)P rogram . T heN O FO establishestheavailableleveloffunds,
identifiesHU D nationalpriorities,anddescribesthecriteriaanddataneededinthecom petitiveapplication.

HU D requiresCoCstoconductalocalreview processandtodesignateaCollaborativeApplicanttosubm it
requestsforfundsintheCoC Com petition.HU D provisionally aw ardsfundstoCoCsbasedonthescoringofa
CoC system -levelapplicationuptoam axim um allocationestablishedby anareapro-rataneed.T heCoC
conductsalocalprocesstodeterm ineneedsw ithinthesystem andtoevaluateandselectandprioritizeproject
levelapplicationstoincludeintheannualapplicationforfunds.

Section II: 2023 HUD CoC Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) Detail

O nJuly 3,2023,HU D publishedtheN O FO fortheContinuum ofCare(CoC)P rogram .Applicationsaredueto
HU D by S eptem ber28,2023.Approxim ately $3.13 billionisavailableforFY 2023.T heVC CoC iseligiblefor$3.3
m illioninannualrenew aldem and(AR D)fundingplusandestim ated$165,299 inplanninggrantfundsw iththe
potentialtoapply fornew bonusprojectfunding.

Althoughtheavailableam ountoffundingisexpectedtobesufficienttofundalleligiblerenew alprojectsinthe
FY 2023 fundingprocess,HU D continuestorequireCollaborativeApplicantstorankallprojectsintw otiers. Tier
1 comprises 93% of the renewal funding available. Tier 2 is 7% of the CoC’s ARD plus any amount available for
bonus projects. Additionally,thereisanongoingem phasisonprojectperform ance. 24 CFR P art578.7(6)
requiresCoCsto‘m onitorrecipientandsubrecipientperform ance,evaluateoutcom es,andtakeactionagainst
poorperform ers’. HU D encouragesCoCstoreallocateunder-perform ingprojectstohigherperform ingprojects
ortorespondtocom m unity needs.T heVC CoC respondstothesefactorsby establishingpolicies,procedures,
andcriteriaforreview ingandrankingeachapplicationforfunding;forreallocation,andforselectionofprojects
forinclusionintheCoC nationalcom petition. HU D alsorequirestheCoC tom eetrequirem entsandguidelines
specifictotheannualN O FO .

A. Threshold/ Eligibility Review: T heCoC isrequiredtoreview allapplicationstoverify eligibility forfederal
CoC funding. Applicantsm ustm eetHU D thresholdsregardingeligibility todobusinessw iththefederal
governm ent;legalstatus;com m itm enttoparticipationinHM IS andtheCoordinatedEntry S ystem (CES );
andfiscalcapacity. P rojectsfrom applicantsnotm eetingtheserequirem entsareineligibletoapply forHU D
CoC funding.

B. Ranking Requirements: T heCoC m ustassignauniqueranktoeachprojectthatitintendstosubm ittoHU D
forFY 2021 fundingexceptfortheCoC planninggrant.R ankingofrenew alprojectsm ustincorporatescoring
onprojectperform ance,system perform anceandeffectiveness.EachCoC m ustcom prehensively review
bothnew andrenew alprojectsw ithinitsgeographicarea,usingCoC-approvedscoringcriteriaandselection
priorities,todeterm inetheextenttow hicheachprojectisstillnecessary andaddressesthelistedpolicy
priorities.Fundsforprojectsthataredeterm inedtobeunderperform ing,obsolete,orineffectiveshouldbe
reallocatedtonew projectsthatarebasedonprovenorprom isingm odels.



P age3 of14

C. Reallocation & Bonus: CoCsm ay usefundsfrom partorw holeexistinggrantstocreatenew projects
throughreallocation.A CoC iseligibletoapply forupto6% ofitsFinalP roR ataN eed(FP R N )andm ay apply
form orethanonebonusprojectprovidedithasdem onstratedtheability toreallocatelow erperform ing
projectstocreatenew higherperform ingprojects. CoCsm ay subm itnew projectapplicationsunderthe
bonusandreallocationprocessforthefollow ingprojecttypes:

1. Permanent supportive housing (PSH) projects w hereallbedsarededicatedforchronically
hom elessindividualsorfam iliesasdefinedin24 CFR 578.3.

2. Rapid Re-Housing (RRH) projects forhom elessindividualsorfam iliesthatcom edirectly from the
streetsorem ergency shelters,includingunaccom paniedyouth.

3. Joint Transitional Housing (TH) and Permanent Housing (PH)-Rapid Re-Housing (RRH) TH-RRH:
projectsthatw illservehom elessindividualsorfam iliesw hom eettheHU D definitionof
hom elessnessorareresidinginaT H program beingelim inated.

4. New Supportive Services Only (SSO) forcoordinatedentry system .
5. New dedicated HMIS projects forcostsat24 CFR 578.37(a)(2)tobecarriedoutby theHM IS L ead.

D. New Projects for Domestic Violence (DV) Bonus:
CoC’sm ay createnew DV projects.CoC’sm ay apply forupto10% ofitsP relim inary P roR ataN eed(P P R N )or
am inim um of$50,000 oram axim um of$5 m illion.A CoC m ay apply foroneofeachofthefollow ingtypes
ofprojects.P rojectsarelim itedtoa1 yearfundingrequestandm ustfollow theHousingFirstapproach:

1. R apidR e-Housing(P H-R R H)projects
2. JointT ransitionalHousingandR apidR e-Housing(T H-R R H)projects.
3. S S O projectsforcoordinatedentry (S S O -CE)toim plem entpolicies,proceduresandpractices

thatequiptheCoC’scoordinatedentry tobetterm eettheneedsofsurvivorsofdom estic
violence,datingviolence,sexualassaultorstalking(e.g.toim plem entpoliciesandprocedures
thataretraum a-inform ed,client-centeredortobettercoordinatereferralsbetw eentheCoCs
coordinatedentry andthevictim serviceprovidersystem w herethey aredifferent).

E. Tiers & Priority Order:
IntheFY23 CoC P rogram Com petition,T ier1 w illequal93% oftheCoC’sAR D. T ier2 is7% oftheAR D plus
theam ountavailablefortheidentifiedbonusprojectfunding.Any new orrenew alprojectm ay beplacedin
T ier1. CoCsshouldcarefully considerthepriority andrankingforallprojectsinT ier1 andT ier2.P rojectsin
T ier1 w illbeconditionally selectedifapplicationspassbothHU D’seligibility andthresholdreview .

P rojectsplacedinT ier2 w illbeassessedforeligibility thresholdandthresholdrequirem entsandfundingw ill
bedeterm inedusingtheCoC Applicationsscoreasw ellasfactorslistedintheN O FA.P rojectsinT ier2 are
evaluatedonaprojectby projectlevelacrosstheCoCsnationally. Asaresult,selectionforfundingof
projectsinT ier2 ism orerigorousthaninT ier1.

F. CoCs should consider the policy priorities established in the NOFO in conjunction with local priorities to
determ inetherankingofnew projectscreatedthroughreallocation,CoC planning,andrenew alproject
requests.



P age4 of14

HUD CoC FY23 Policy and Program Priorities

1) Ending homelessness for all persons by aligningstrategiesw iththeAL L IN :FederalS trategicP lanto

P reventandEndHom elessness

2) Use a Housing First approach tohelpindividualsandfam iliesm ovequickly intoperm anenthousing.T his

shouldincludelandlordengagem ent,rem ovingbarrierstoentry andadoptingclient-centeredservice.

3) Reduce unsheltered homelessness by exploringallavailableresources.CoCsshouldw orkw ithlaw

enforcem entandlocalgovernm entstoelim inatepoliciesandpracticesthatcrim inalizehom elessness.

4) Improve system performance andusetheCoordinatedEntry processtom akehom elessnessassistance

open,inclusiveandtransparent.

5) Partner with housing, health and service agencies toim provehow allavailableresourcesareutilizedto

endhom elessness.P artnershipsw ithpublicandprivatehealthcareorganizations,publichousing

authorities,localw orkforcedevelopm entcentersandtribalorganizationstom axim izetheuseof

m ainstream andothercom m unity-basedresources.

6) Address racial equity toensuresuccessfuloutcom esforallpersonsexperiencinghom elessness.

7) Improve assistance to LGBTQ+ individuals by ensuringprivacy,respect,safety andaccessregardlessof

genderidentity orsexualorientationinprojects.

8) Include persons with lived expertise and experience inthelocalplanninganddecision-m akingprocess.

CoC leadersandstakeholdersshouldprioritizehiringpeoplew hohaveexperiencedhom elessnessin

areasw heretheirexpertiseisneeded.

9) Increase the affordable housing supply by com m unicatingw ithjurisdictionleadersaboutstepssuchas

zoningandlandusereform thatw ouldincreasethesupply ofaffordablehousing.

Ventura County Policy on Project Ranking and Tiering
(adopted and finalized on July 12, 2023 by VC CoC Board)

Section III: Ventura County Policy on Reallocation, Project Ranking and Tiering

A. Policy Objectives:
Indevelopingourlocalpolicy governingprojectranking,reallocationandtiering,VenturaCounty CoC’s
objectivesaretoalignw iththeVC CoC m ission,valuesandguidingprinciples:

 Mission Statement:T heVC CoC Allianceisacollaborativegroupdedicatedtoprom otingasafe,
desirableandthrivingcom m unity by endinghom elessnessinVenturaCounty.

 Vision:Hom elessnessisrare,briefandnon-recurring

 Values: W evaluethedignity ofevery hum anlife,thew ell-beingofthecom m unity andthe
pow erofthecom m unity tow orkingtogethertosolvecom m unity problem s.

 Guiding Principles:
o CollectiveIm pact
o HousingFirst
o S trengths-BasedandT raum a-Inform edCare



P age5 of14

o Harm reduction
o CenteringR acialEquity inS ystem Design

● Com ply w ithHU D requirem ents.
● P reservefundingforhighperform ingandeffectiveprojects.
● Fundprogram sthatcontributepositively tooverallsystem perform ance.
● S hiftinvestm entsfrom low erperform ingprojectsandonesw hichareatriskoflosingHU D

fundingtonew projectsthathelpadvanceourcom m unity’sgoalofreducinghom elessnessand
dem onstrateeffectiveapproachesandbestpractices.

Rationale for Preliminary Rankings

● Closely follow edHU D’sprioritiesandguidelinesforrankingprojects.

● P ositivecontributiontoS ystem L evelP erform ancew illbeheavily w eightedw henrankingprojects
includingexitstoperm anenthousingandhousingretention.

● Exam ineunder-perform ingprojectsandunder-utilizedprojectsandconsiderreallocation.

● P rojects/agenciesengagem entinContinuum ofCareeffortsandparticipationinCoordinatedEntry
w illbew eightedw henrankingprojects.

● P rojectsthatservechronically hom eless(CH)arerankedhigheronthelistthanprogram sw ithout
dedicatedCH beds. P rogram sthattargetchronically hom elessfornon-dedicatedbedsasthey
becam eavailablearerankedhigheronthelist.

 P rojectsim plem entingaHousingFirstm odelw ithpoliciesandprocedurestoem phasizetheir
practicesrankhigher.

● P rojectsservingvulnerablepopulations(chronically hom eless,m entally ill,youthandpersons
fleeingdom esticviolence)w illreceiveadditionalpointsw henrankingprojects.

● Costefficiency andutilizationw illbeconsideredw henrankingprojectsw ithintheproject
com ponent(P H-R R H,P S H,T H).

B. Project Review and Ranking Policy:
T heVenturaCounty CoC w illinvitesubm issionsfornew andrenew alprojectsandw illconductareview
andrankingfollow ingtheproceduresstatedinS ectionsIV andV.

T hegeneralapproachtoratingandrankingw illbetoorganizeprojectsintogroups:
1) renew alP H andR R H
2) renew alS afeHaven
3) new P H andR R H
4) new T H-R R H
5) new S S O CES
6) HM IS projects(T ier1)



P age6 of14

W ithineachtype,projectsw illbescoredusingascoresystem specifictothatprogram typeandplaced
w ithintheirrankedorder,w ithrenew alP S H andR R H inthefirstgroup(orderedby score)andthenew
P S H andR R H inthesecondgroup(orderedby score).R enew alprojectsscoringlessthan70 pointsw ill
beconsideredforreallocation.IfCoC decidestorankandsubm itprojectscoringbelow 70 points,itm ay
berankedinT ier2.T heCoC goalistopreservefundingfortheentirecom m unity andw illm akeranking
decisionstosubm itacom petitiveapplicationandnotputcom m unity-w idefundingatrisk.

C. Tiering Policy:
O ncetherankorderofprojectshasbeendeterm inedtheprojectsatthebottom ofthelistw illfallinto
T ier2 (7% ofAR D).

AsHM IS andCoordinatedEntry areHU D m andatedrequirem entsinordertoreceiveContinuum ofCare
funding,itisstrongly recom m endedthatthesefundedprojectsrem aintopprioritiesinT ier1 inorderto
secureandm aintainfundingforthisrequiredactivity.

T heCoC P lanningGrantisnotrankedperHU D’sguidance.

Section IV: Process for Rating and Ranking Renewal Projects

A: Rating and Ranking Process:

A L etterofIntent(L O I)w asissuedby theCoC on[EnterDate] togatherrelevantperform anceandthreshold
docum entationfrom eachprojectidentifiedaseligibleforrenew al. L O IsareduetoCoC staffby (EnterDate)

Allrenew alprojectsw illberankedusinganobjectivescoringsystem asapprovedasrecom m endedby theVC
CoC DataandP erform anceCom m itteeandapprovedby theVC CoC Board. VC CoC S taffw illusedataprovided
throughtheL O Iprocess(forbothS H andP H renew als)tocalculateascoreforeachrenew alandusetheresults
todeveloptheP rojectP riority L istingforreview andapprovalby theVC CoC Boardasrecom m endedthrough
theVC CoC DataandP erform anceCom m ittee.

T heL O Iprocessisintendedtoassessagency’scapacity toadm inisterCoC projectsw hilecom plyingw ithHU D
requirem ents. Additionally,theL O IhelpsstaffandtheCoC Com m itteesreview thefollow ing:

1.S ystem P erform anceData(projectcontribution)
2.AnnualP erform anceR eport(AP R )tim elinessanddataquality
3.Vulnerabilitiesofpopulationsservedby projectsincludingfillingvacanciesthroughcoordinatedentry
4.Financialcom m itm ent(m atch)
5.Alignm entw ithbestpractices:HousingFirst/L ow Barrier/Harm R eduction
6.CoC participation/VC CoC P artnerAgency M em orandum ofU nderstanding(M O U )

VC CoC S taffandVC CoC DataandP erform anceCom m itteeusedataprovidedthroughtheL O Iprocess,HM IS
reports(AnnualP erform anceR eportsandCoC S ystem P erform anceData)analysistodeveloptheP rojectP riority
L istingforreview andapprovalby theVC CoC Board. T hisprocessisconductedinopenpublicm eetingsandall
m aterialsarepostedontheVC CoC w ebsite:w w w .venturacoc.org



P age7of14

B. Scoring Criteria for Renewal Permanent Housing (PSH and RRH):

T hescoringsystem w illhaveam axim um of100 pointsw ithpointsforprojectandsystem perform anceand
thresholdfactors. Datatoassessbothperform anceandthresholdcriteriaw illbeobtainedfrom theinform ation
subm ittedby theapplicantsintheirL O Iresponse.S ystem P erform anceDataw illbepulledfrom HM IS ;how ever,
victim serviceprovidersm ustsubm itdatageneratedfrom acom parabledatabaseforreview .

T heperform ancem easuresw illbebasedonthoseestablishedby HU D,VC CoC localperform ancetargetsand
trackedthroughHM IS data:

● atleast85 percentofprojectparticipantseitherrem ainedinperm anenthousingorexitedto
anotherperm anenthousinglocation.

● atleast55 percentofprojectparticipantincreasedtheirincom efrom sourcesotherthan
em ploym entinanoperatingyear.

● atleast90 percentofprojectparticipantsobtainedm ainstream benefits

S om erenew ingprojectsw illnothaveafullyearofperform ancedatatobeconsideredinthereview andrank
processbecausethey havenotyetbeenoperationalforafullyear. T heseprojectsw illbereview edonthedata
they haveavailablebutw illnotbepenalizedfornotservingthefullnum berofparticipants.Ifanew project
doesnothaveenoughperform ancedatatoreview ,they w illbereview edforadm inistrativeandprogram
com plianceandberankedatthebottom ofT ier1.T heiroverallscorew illplacethem inthebottom ofthegroup
ofP S H andR R H renew alsbutthey w illbeplacedinT ier1 becauseP H renew alsasagroupw illbethefirstonthe
P rojectP riority L ist. Ifaprojectispoorly perform ingandlackscapacity,thecom m itteem ay recom m endthe
projectforreallocation.

C. Scoring Criteria for Renewal Safe Haven:

T hescoringsystem w illhaveam axim um of100 pointsw ithpointsforprojectandsystem perform anceand
thresholdfactors. Datatoassessbothperform anceandthresholdcriteriaw illbeobtainedfrom theinform ation
subm ittedby theapplicantsintheirL O Iresponse.S ystem P erform anceDataw illbepulledfrom HM IS .

T heperform ancem easuresw illbebasedonthoseestablishedby HU D,VC CoC localperform ancetargetsand
trackedthroughHM IS data:

● atleast80 percentofprojectparticipantseitherexittoperm anenthousing,oratem porary
placem entprogressingtow ardsperm anenthousing.

● atleast55 percentofprojectparticipantincreasedtheirtotalincom einanoperatingyear.
● atleast90 percentofprojectparticipantsobtainedm ainstream benefits,aseligible

D. HMIS Renewal:

Consistentw ithpreviousCoC applications,HM IS renew alsw illbeexem ptfrom thefullL etterofIntent(L O I)but
w illbeassessedforperform anceandspendinginalignm entw ithHU D requirem ents. AsnotedinS ectionII,the
HM IS renew alw illbeplacedinT ier1.



P age8of14

Section V: Process and Criteria for Ranking New Projects

T heVC CoC Boardw illexam inerecom m endationsfrom theVC CoC DataandP erform anceCom m itteeandVC
CoC stafftodeterm inetheam ountoffundingavailableforreallocation.N ew bonusfundsandany reallocated
fundsw illbeaw ardedthroughaR equestforP roposal(R FP )processforopencom petitionforprojectsthat
provideP erm anentS upportiveHousing(P S H)tochronically hom elessindividualsorR apidR e-Housing(R R H)
projectsthatservesingleadults,fam iliesoryouth.

AnadditionalR FP processw illbeheldforVC CoC Dom esticViolenceBonusfunding.T hisfundingiseligiblefor
thefollow ingprojecttypesthatservepersonsfleeingdom esticviolence,sexualassaultandhum antrafficking:1)
P H-R R H;2)T H-R R H;3)CE-S S O .Applicationsw illbescoredthesam easothernew projectsw ithadditionalpoints
forprojectsthathaveaplanforprom otingsafety forthepopulationserved.Victim S erviceP roviderapplicants
w illprovidedatafrom acom parabledatabasetodem onstrateneed,capacity andperform ance.

T heR FP w illbestructuredtoaw ardfundstoprojectsthat1)m eetVenturaCounty’sCoC priorities;and2)are
m ostcom petitiveinevaluatingprojectcapacity andpastperform ance. Inaddition,projectsm ustm eetHU D’s
thresholdandquality requirem ents. T heR FP w illrequireapplicantstosubm itprojectnarrative,applicant
capacity andfinancialinform ationsufficienttoassessallofthesefactors.T oevaluatew hetherprojectsm eetthe
HU D threshold,quality standards,andperform ancestandards,theprojectsw illbereview edby theVC CoC Data
andP erform anceCom m ittee.

T oevaluateprojectquality andfitw ithVenturaCounty objectivesanddeveloparankedorder,theCoC w ill
conveneanunbiasedprojectreview m eetingtoreview eachnew project. P rojectsw illbescoredbasedona100
pointsystem (Attachm entA andB). T heVC CoC S taffw illthenholdonem eetingtoreview andscore
applicationsandarriveataproposedfinalrankingfornew projects,includingarecom m endationofw hich
projectshouldbesubm ittedastheP S H bonus. T hepanelm ay alsorecom m endthatprojectsshouldeither
increaseordecreasetheirfundingrequesttom axim izetheuseofavailablereallocatedorbonusfunds.

T hefinalrankingofnew projectsasdeterm inedw illbediscussedandapprovedby theVC CoC Boardon
S eptem ber13,2023 todeterm inetheorderontheP rojectP riority L isting.

Section VI: Final Project Priority List and Notification to Applicants

O ncetheratingandrankingprocessesfornew andrenew alapplicantsarecom plete,VC CoC staffw illintegrate
theresultsofthescoring/rankingprocessesandcreatethefinalproposedP rojectP riority L istingforreview by
theVC CoC Board. T hisproposedlistcanincluderecom m endationstoadjusttheplacem entofprojectsinT ier2
inordertom axim izethetotalfundingaw ardforVenturaCounty. T heproposedfinallistw illbeapproved,and
noticesenttotheapplicantsofthefinalresultsnolaterthanS eptem ber15,2023.

Section VII: Appeal Process

Applicantsm ay appealany ofthefollow ingdecisionsoftheVC CoC:
1) P lacem entofprojectintoT ier2
2) R eductioninfunding
3) P rojectnotincludedinfinalFY23 VC CoC consolidatedapplication.



P age9 of14

Appealsm ustbesubm ittedtotheVenturaCounty CollaborativeApplicantnolaterthanS eptem ber15,2023.
Appealsw illbeheardby theVC Data,P erform ance& EvaluationCom m ittee. T hedecisionoftheappealpanel
w illbesubm ittedtotheVC CoC Boardtom akeafinaldeterm ination.



P age10 of14

Attachment A

P erm anentS upportiveHousing(P S H)andR apidR e-Housing(R R H)P erform anceM easures-M ax.100 P oints
w ith40 pointstow ardsS ystem P erform ancedetailedbelow .

● atleast85 percentofprojectparticipantseitherrem ainedinperm anenthousingorexitedtoanotherP H
(upto10 points)

● atleast55 percentofprojectparticipantsincreasedtheirtotalincom einagivenoperatingyear(upto
10 points).

● Dem onstratequickly m ovingpersonsintoperm anenthousingfrom program entry tohousingm ovingin
datew ithgoaloffew erthan30 daysfrom program entry tom ovein(upto10 points).

● few erthan5% returnstohom elessnessw ithinayearofexitingfrom P H/R R H program (upto10 points).

P rojectscanreceiveanadditional10 pointsform axim izingutilizationoftheirprogram vacanciesw ithan
averageofnolessthan95% utilizationintheprevious4 quarters.HM IS DataQ uality shouldreflectnom ore
than10% ofany m issingdataelem ent.

U nderperform ingprojectsw illbediscussedindetailw ithVC CoC DataandP erform anceCom m itteeand
recom m endationsw illbem adeforreallocationtotheVC CoC Boardw henappropriate.

Permanent Housing (PSH/RRH) Projects: Applicant: ___________________ Project: ____________________

Threshold Renewal Points Source Document Max Points Total Scored

Compliance with Grants and
Financial Management

AnnualP erform anceR eportsubm ittedtim ely,HU D
m onitoring,eL O CCS ,close-outcertificates;new
projectsw illproviderelevantinform ationon
m anagingfederalgrants.5 pointsforAP R subm ittal
tim ely;5 pointsfor95% orgreaterexpenditureof
grantfunds.

10

Housing First/Low Barrier/Harm
Reduction

Intakepolicy consistentw ithHousingFirst/L ow
Barrier/Harm R eduction(includingtheacceptance
ofcrim inalhistory,dom esticviolencehistory,
and/orsubstanceusedisorders)= 10pts
Com m itm enttoHousingFirstw ithsom eexceptions,
basedonprojecttype= 5pts
N oHousingFirst= 0 pts

10

Best Practices/Supportive Services L O I+ supportivedocum entation(intakepackets,
leaseagreem ents,servicedocum ents,staffingplan)
consistentw ithHousingFirst,L ow Barrierandlocal
prioritizationstandards(serving the most
vulnerable),fillingvacanciesthroughcoordinated
entry = 10pts
M issingdocum ent(-2pts)
Inconsistency w ithdocum ents,servicesandstaff
plan= 5pts
N otalignedw ithbestpractices= 0 pts

10



P age11 of14

CoC participation, HEARTH
compliance

Attendancerecordsorcom m itm entfornew
partnerstoparticipateinCoC m eetings(upto5);
com pliancew ithCoC P artnerM O U (upto5)

10

Project Performance BedU tilization(95% +)(upto5 points),HM IS Data
Q uality (upto5 points)

10

System Level Performance >5% R eturnstoHom elessness(upto10 points),
L engthoftim eHom eless,55% ofparticipants
IncreaseT otalIncom e(upto10 points),85% of
participantsw ithsuccessfulexitstoP erm anent
Housing(upto10 points)

40

Cost Effectiveness - Successful
housing outcomes

Costpersuccessfulhousingoutcom e– w ithin
projecttype(upto10 points)

10

TOTAL 100



P age12 of14

Attachment B
T hefollow ingw illbeappliedfortheperform ancem easuresscoredforS afeHaven(S H)P rojectsrenew als.
S H P erform anceM easures-M ax.100 P ointsw ith40 pointstow ardsS ystem P erform ance

● atleast80 percentofprojectparticipantsexittoaperm anenthousingorotherpositivedestination(up
to10 points).

● atleast55 percentofprojectparticipantsincreasedtheirtotalincom einagivenoperatingyear(upto5
points).

● atleast90 percentofprojectparticipantsobtainedorm aintainedm ainstream benefits(upto5 points).
● few erthan5% returnstohom elessnessw ithinayearofexitingfrom S H program (upto10 points).
● Averagelengthofstay <180 days(upto10 points)

P rojectscanreceiveanadditional10 pointsform axim izingutilizationoftheirprogram vacanciesw ithan
averageofnolessthan95% utilizationintheprevious4 quarters.HM IS DataQ uality shouldreflectnom ore
than10% ofany m issingdataelem ent.

U nderperform ingprojectsw illbediscussedindetailw ithVC CoC DataandP erform anceCom m itteeand
recom m endationsw illbem adeforreallocationtotheVC CoC Boardw henappropriate.

Safe Haven (SH) Projects: Applicant: _______________________ Project: ______________________________

T hresholdR enew alP oints Source Document Max Points Total Scored

Com pliancew ithGrantsand
FinancialM anagem ent

AnnualP erform anceR eportsubm ittedtim ely,HU D
m onitoring,eL O CCS ,close-outcertificates;new
projectsw illproviderelevantinform ationon
m anagingfederalgrants.5 pointsforAP R subm ittal
tim ely;5 pointsfor95% orgreaterexpenditureof
grantfunds.

10

HousingFirst/L ow Barrier/Harm
R eduction

P roposalandprogram designconsistentw ith
HousingFirst/L ow Barrier/Harm R eduction
(includingtheacceptanceofcrim inalhistory,
dom esticviolencehistory,and/orsubstanceuse
disorders)= U pto10pts
Com m itm enttoHousingFirstw ithsom eexceptions,
basedonprojecttype= 5pts
N oHousingFirst= 0 pts

10

BestP ractices/S upportiveS ervices P rojectdesignandstaffingplanconsistentw ith
HousingFirst,L ow Barrierandlocalprioritization
standards(serving the most vulnerable),filling
vacanciesthroughcoordinated entry,usingHM IS
andhousingparticipantsasquickly aspossible= U p
to10pts
Inconsistency w ithdocum ents,servicesandstaff
plan= 5pts
N otalignedw ithbestpractices= 0 pts

10



P age13 of14

CoC participation,HEAR T H
com pliance

Attendancerecordsorcom m itm entfornew
partnerstoparticipateinCoC m eetings(upto5);
com pliancew ithCoC P artnerM O U (upto5)

10

P rojectP erform ance BedU tilization(95% +)(upto5 points),HM IS Data
Q uality (upto5 points)

10

S ystem L evelP erform ance >5% R eturnstoHom elessness(upto10 points),
L engthoftim eHom eless,55% ofparticipants
IncreaseT otalIncom e(upto10 points),85% of
participantsw ithsuccessfulexitstoP erm anent
Housing(upto10 points)

40

Cost Effectiveness - Successful
housing outcomes

Costpersuccessfulhousingoutcom e– w ithin
projecttype(upto10 points)

10

T O T AL 100

New Projects: Applicant:_______________________________Project:_________________________________

T hresholdP oints Source Document Max Points Total Scored

Com pliance/Experiencew ithGrants
andFinancialM anagem ent

P roviderelevantinform ationonm anagingfederal
grantsanddem onstratecapacity forsuccess.
Financialcapacity,staffingcapacity,past
perform anceinim plem entinggrantfunded
program s.Dem onstratesability tom eetm atch
requirem ents. (U pto10 points)

10

HousingFirst/L ow Barrier/Harm
R eduction

P rogram design(housingandsupportservices)and
staffingplanconsistentw ithHousingFirst/L ow
Barrier/Harm R eduction(includingtheacceptance
ofcrim inalhistory,dom esticviolencehistory,
and/orsubstanceusedisorders)S ervicessufficient
tosupporthousingparticipantsasquickly as
possibleand providingadequatesupportservicesto
supporthousingstability.P rojectcom m itsto
utilizingHM IS ,fillvacanciesthroughCES and
participateinsystem w idecoordination.(U pto
20pts)

20

T im elinessforN ew P rojectS tartU p P roposedprojecttim elinedem onstratesability to
staffup,launchprogram andspendfundstim ely.
Establishbenchm arksat60,120,& 180 dayspost
grantaw ard.(U pto10 points)

10



P age14 of14

S ervingvulnerablepopulations P roposalcom m itstoservinghighly vulnerable
populations.P roposaldetailshow program w ill
provideservicestom eetuniqueneedsof
participants.(U pto10 points)

10

CoC participation,HEAR T H
com plianceandcollaboration

Com m itm entfornew partnerstoparticipateinCoC
m eetings(upto5);com pliancew ithCoC P artner
M O U (upto5);Collaborationw ithother
organizationsand program stoaddresstheneedsof
thetargetpopulation,includingm ainstream
benefits,socialservices,em ploym entprogram sand
otherm ainstream program s(upto10)

20

P roject/S ystem P erform ance P roposedprogram alignsanddem onstratesplansto
achieveHU D andCoC projectandsystem
perform ancebenchm arks(U pto20)

20

CostEfficiency T heaveragecostperexittoperm anenthousing
basedonthetotalprogram costs.

10

T O T AL 100



2  

2023 Letter of Intent to Renew CoC Project 
 

Instructions: Please complete one letter for each renewal application (HUD approved 
consolidated grants may submit one LOI for the full consolidated project). 

 
 

Lead Agency Information 
 

CCR #:  
DUNS # or EUI #:  
Agency Name:  
Agency Address:  
City, State ZIP:  
Phone:  Fax:    Email:  

 
Grant/Application Contact Person:  

Name:  
Phone:  
Email:  

 
Agency Director: 

Name:  
Phone:  
Email:  

 
HMIS Contact Person 

Name:  
Phone:  
Email:  

 
Project Information: 

Name of Project:  
Project Address:  
Grant Amount:  
Grant Term:  
Expiration Date:  
Program Type:  
Primary Population:  

 
Annual Renewal Amount for Project:  
Total Number of Units/Beds:  

 
 
 



3 

Previously approved budget amounts by activity: 

Activity: Budget Amount: 
Leased Units 
Leased Structures 
Rental Assistance 
Supportive Services 
Operations 
HMIS 
Administration 

Total: 

Name and Signature of Person who will complete the application: 

Name and Signature of Person authorized to sign the HUD application: 

I certify, on behalf of my agency that all information contained in this application is accurate 
and true, based on our current records for the project. I understand that falsifying information 
or failing to provide accurate information will have a negative impact on my overall review and 
may result in removal from the Continuum of Care Application to HUD. I also understand that 
projects not submitting their Letter of Intent by the deadline may be reallocated. 

Executive Director/CEO/President Date 



4 

Background Information: 

The Continuum of Care (CoC) will consider the need to continue funding for projects expiring 
in 2023 as required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). 
However, as noted by HUD, renewal projects must meet minimum project eligibility, capacity, 
timeliness, and performance standards identified in the Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) 
or they will be rejected from consideration for funding. 

While considering the need to continue funding for projects expiring in 2023, the CoC Data, 
Performance & Evaluation Committee will review the information that HUD noted in the 
2023 NOFO CoC Program Competition, which is as follows: 

1. When considering renewal projects for award, HUD will review financial information;
Annual Performance Reports (APRs); independent or 2-CFR-200 audit reports as
applicable; and information provided from the local HUD CPD Field Office, including
monitoring report and performance standards on prior grants; and will assess projects
using the following criteria:
a. Whether the project applicant's performance met the plans and goals established in

the initial application, as amended.
b. Whether the project applicant demonstrated all timeliness standards for grants being

renewed, including those standards for the expenditure of grant funds that have
been met.

c. The project applicant's performance in assisting program participants to achieve and
maintain independent living and records of success, except HMIS-dedicated projects
that are not required to meet this standard; and,

d. Whether there is evidence that a project applicant has been unwilling to accept
technical assistance, has a history of inadequate financial accounting practices, has
indications of project mismanagement, has a drastic reduction in the population
served, has made program changes without prior HUD approval, or has lost a project
site.

2. Although a project may be recommended for funding by the CoC, HUD reserves the right
to reduce or reject a funding request from the project applicant for the following reasons:
a. Outstanding obligation to HUD that is in arrears or for which a payment schedule

has not been agreed upon.
b. Audit/Monitoring finding(s) for which a response is overdue or unsatisfactory.
c. History of inadequate financial management accounting practices.
d. Evidence of untimely expenditures and unspent funds on prior award.
e. History of other major capacity issues that have significantly affected the operation

of the project and its performance.



5 

f. History of not reimbursing subrecipients for eligible costs in a timely manner, or at
least quarterly; and

g. History of serving ineligible program participants, expending funds on ineligible
costs, or failing to expend funds within statutorily established timeframes. 

 I. Recipient Compliance with Grants and Financial Management:

Per 24 CFR part 578 and the 2023 CoC Program Competition NOFO requires that Project 
Applicants specifically identify four benchmarks for grants and financial management that 
communities must reach to meet this standard, which are 

1. On-time APR submission.
2. Resolved HUD or Office of Inspector General (OIG) Audits, if applicable.
3. Monthly submission of claims; and
4. The full expenditure of awarded funds.

The following questions are designed to inform HUD of the recipient’s performance related to 
these four statutory and regulatory requirements and to provide the recipient with an 
opportunity to explain their inability to meet the related standards. 

1. Has the recipient successfully submitted the APR on time for the most recently expired
grant term related to this renewal project request?

APRs are due within 90 days after the grant term expires. Select “Yes” to indicate that an APR 
has been submitted for the grant term that has most recently expired. Select “No” to indicate 
that an APR has not been submitted for the grant term that has most recently expired or 
if this is a first-time renewal for which the original grant term has not yet expired. 

Yes 
No 
This is a first-time renewal for which the original grant term has not yet expired 

If you selected “No” above, provide a brief explanation for why the APR was not submitted on 
time in the box below (expand box as needed). For those first-time renewals for which the 
original grant term has not yet expired, please write, “First-time renewal and grant term has 
not yet expired” and provide the date by which the APR must be submitted. 



6 

2. Does the recipient have any unresolved HUD Monitoring and/or OIG Audit findings
concerning any previous grant term related to this renewal project request?

Yes 
No 

Select “Yes” if there are any unresolved HUD Monitoring or OIG Audit findings, regardless of 
the funding year of the project for which they were originally identified. Select “No” if there are 
no unresolved HUD Monitoring or OIG Audit findings. 

a. Date HUD or OIG issued the oldest unresolved finding(s):
If you selected “Yes” above, provide the date that the oldest unresolved finding was
issued.

Date the oldest unresolved finding was issued:

b. Explain why the finding(s) remains unresolved:
If you selected “Yes” above, provide a brief explanation in the box below (expand
box as needed) for why the monitoring or audit finding remains unresolved and the
steps that have been taken towards resolution (e.g., responded to the HUD letter,
but no final determination received).

3. Has the recipient maintained timely and consistent monthly submission of claims for
the most recent grant terms related to this renewal project request?

Yes 
No 

CoC Program recipients are required to submit claims on a monthly basis. Select “Yes” to 
indicate that you have maintained monthly submission of claims for the most recent relevant 
grant term. For some grants, the standard will be applied to the FY 2022 renewal, for others the 
FY 2021, and for some multi-year first-time renewals a grant awarded in an earlier fiscal year. 
Select “No” to indicate that the recipient has not maintained consistent monthly claim 
submission for the most recent relevant grant term, or if this is a first-time renewal for which 
less than one quarter has passed. 

a. Explain why the recipient has not maintained timely and consistent monthly
claim submission for the most recent grant terms related to this renewal
project request.



7 

If you selected “No” above, provide a brief explanation in the box below (expand 
box as needed) for why monthly claim submissions have not been maintained. 
Delays in draws due to a late HUD funding announcement and receipt of renewal 
grant agreement may be included in such an explanation. 

4. Have any funds been recaptured by or returned to HUD for any of the three (3)
most recently expired grant terms related to this renewal project request?

Yes 
No 
Project has not yet completed a grant term 

Select “Yes” to indicate that funds have been recaptured, meaning that not all awarded funds 
were expended during the three previous completed grant terms. Select “No” to indicate that 
no funds were recaptured or if this is a first-time renewal for which the original grant term has 
not yet expired. 

a. If you selected “Yes” above, explain the circumstances that led to HUD
recapturing/returning funds from any of the three (3) most recently e x p i r e d
grant term related to this renewal project request:

Provide a brief explanation in the box below (expand box as needed) for why
the total awarded funds were not expended and were returned/recaptured.
Include the amount returned for each year.

II. Housing First and Low Barriers Approach

Housing First is a model of housing assistance that prioritizes rapid placement and stabilization 
in permanent housing that does not have service participation requirements or preconditions 
(such as sobriety or a minimum income threshold). It is an approach to 1) quickly and 
successfully connect individuals and families experiencing homelessness to permanent housing. 
2) without barriers to entry, such as sobriety, treatment or service participation requirements;



8 

or 3) related preconditions that might lead to the program participant’s termination from the 
project. Supportive services are offered to maximize housing stability and prevent returns 
to homelessness as opposed to addressing predetermined treatment goals prior to 
permanent housing entry; however, participation in supportive services is based on the 
needs and desires of program participants. For more information, review the 2023 CoC 
Program Competition NOFO and the Housing First in PSH brief at: 
www.hudexchange.info/resource/3892/housing-first-in-permanent-supportive-housing-brief/ 

1. Does the project quickly move participants into permanent housing?

Yes 
No 

Select “Yes” to this question if your project will quickly move program participants into 
permanent housing without additional steps (e.g., required stay in transitional housing before 
moving to permanent housing). If you are a domestic violence (DV) program you should select 
“Yes” if you will quickly move program participants into permanent housing after immediate 
safety needs are addressed (e.g., a person who is still in danger from a violent situation and 
would move into PH once the dangerous situation has been addressed). Select “No” if the 
project does not work to move program participants quickly into permanent housing. 

2. Has the project removed the following barriers to accessing housing and services?
Having too little or little income 
Active or history of substance abuse 
Having a criminal record with exceptions for state-mandated restrictions 
Fleeing domestic violence (e.g. lack of a protective order, period of separation from abuser or 
law enforcer involvement 
None of the above 

(Select ALL that apply): Check the box next to each item to confirm that your project has 
removed (or never had) barriers to program access related to each of the following: 1) Having 
too little or little income; 2) Active or history of substance abuse; 3) Having a criminal record 
with exceptions for state-mandated restrictions; and 4) Fleeing domestic violence (e.g., lack of a 
protective order, period of separation from abuser, or law enforcement involvement). If all of 
these barriers to access still exist, select “None of the above.” 

3. Has the project removed the following as reasons for program termination?
Failure to participate in supportive services 
Failure to make progress on a service plan 
Loss of income or failure to improve income 
Fleeing domestic violence 
Any other activity not covered in a lease agreement typically found in the project’s 

http://www.hudexchange.info/resource/3892/housing-first-in-permanent-supportive-housing-brief/


9 

geographic area 
None of the above 

Check the box next to each item to confirm that your project has removed (or never had) 
reasons for program participant termination related to each of the following: 1) Failure to 
participate in supportive services; 2) Failure to make progress on a service plan; 3) Loss of 
income or failure to improve income; 4) Fleeing domestic violence; and 5) Any other activity not 
covered in a lease agreement typically found in the project’s geographic area. If all of these 
reasons for program termination still exist, select “None of the above.” 

Additional attachments: Please attach the following supporting documentation that shows 
that your agency provided staff training and policies and procedures so that staff fully 
understands how to implement the Housing First approach: a copy of the agency Policies and 
Procedures, staff training materials, and any forms or other related documents. 

Please identify whether the project includes the following activities: 

1. Transportation assistance to clients to attend mainstream benefit
appointments, employment training, or jobs?

Yes 
No 

Select “Yes” if the project provides regular or as needed transportation assistance to 
mainstream and community resources, including appointments, employment training, 
educational programs, or jobs. Select “No” if transportation is not regularly provided or cannot 
be provided consistently as requested. 

2. Use of a single application form for four or more mainstream programs?

Yes 
No 

Select “Yes” if the project uses a *single application form that allows program participants to 
sign up for four or more mainstream programs. Select “No” if application forms cover 3 or 
fewer mainstream programs. 

*Agencies utilizing My Benefits CalWIN meet this requirement.

III. Supportive Services for Participants



10

3. Regular follow-ups with participants to ensure mainstream benefits are received and
renewed?

Yes 
No 

Select “Yes” if the project regularly follows-up with program participants at least annually to 
ensure that they have applied for, are receiving their mainstream benefits, and renew benefits 
when required. Select “No” if there is no or irregular follow-up concerning mainstream benefits. 

4. Do program participants have access to SSI/SSDI technical assistance provided by the
applicant, a subrecipient, or partner agency?

Yes 
No 

Select “Yes” if program participants have access to SSI/SSDI technical assistance. The assistance 
can be provided by the applicant, a subrecipient, or a partner agency–through a formal or 
informal relationship. Select “No” if there is no or significantly limited access to SSI/SSDI technical 
assistance 

5. Has the staff person providing the technical assistance completed SOAR training in the
past 24 months?

Yes 
No 

This question will only appear if “Yes” is selected to the previous question. Select “Yes” to 
indicate that the applicant, subrecipient or partner agency staff person who will be providing 
the SSI/SSDI technical assistance has completed SOAR training, online or in person, in the past 
24 months. If more than one person will provide technical assistance, select “Yes” only if all 
persons have completed the training. Otherwise, select “No.” 

IV. Outreach for Participants

Project Applicants are required to identify where their eligible program participants come from 
with respect to HUD’s homeless definition and must include percentages of program 
participants that are served using requested funds. Project Applicants must ensure that all 
persons served in renewal RRH projects meet the requirements found in 24 CFR part 578 and 
the 2022 CoC Program Competition NOFO. 



11 

1. Enter the percentage of homeless person(s) who will be served by the proposed
project for each of the following locations: Indicate the percentage of homeless
persons who will be admitted from each of the listed locations. Not all of the following
locations are eligible locations for all project’s types. For example, persons coming
from transitional housing are not eligible for PH-RRH projects. Instead, renewal RRH
projects must continue to serve individuals and families coming from the streets or
emergency shelters. New RRH projects created through reallocation could also serve
persons fleeing domestic violence Note: It is critical that you refer to 24 CFR part 578
and the current year CoC Program Competition NOFO to confirm the eligible locations
for each type of project (please contact your local HUD field office if you are unclear
as to which NOFO requirements take precedence). The total percentage must equal
100% in order to submit the project application.

% Eligible Locations: 
Directly from the street or other locations not meant for human habitation. 
Directly from emergency shelters. (this includes domestic violence emergency 
shelters) 
Directly from safe havens. 
From transitional housing and previously resided in a place not meant for 
human habitation or emergency shelters, or safe havens. 
Persons fleeing domestic violence (or attempting to flee). 
Total of above percentages 

Individuals coming from an institution where they have resided for 90 days or less AND have 
entered the institution from the streets, emergency shelter, or safe haven, maintain their 
homeless status during that time. Include these program participants in the percentages for 
streets, places not meant for human habitation, emergency shelters, and safe havens 
accordingly. 

Projects that have been approved to change from TH to PH-RRH should list residents who are 
remaining in the program from the previous grant term according to the place from which they 
originally entered. They should not be listed as entering from transitional housing simply because 
they were in the program during the previous grant term. 

Refer to 24 CFR part 578, the 2023 CoC Program Competition NOFO, and the homeless definition 
at www.hudexchange.info/resource/1928/hearth-defining-homeless-final-rule/ for further 
guidance. 

http://www.hudexchange.info/resource/1928/hearth-defining-homeless-final-rule/


12 

V. Participation in Homeless Management Information System (HMIS)

The Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing: Continuum of Care (CoC) 
Program interim rule places a high emphasis on having a functioning and comprehensive HMIS 
in the CoC jurisdiction as it is critical to gathering unduplicated, aggregated data on 
homelessness in the community for both the CoC and Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) 
Programs. 

• Does this project provide client level data to HMIS at least annually?  Yes  No

If the project is providing participant data in the HMIS – indicate the total number of 
participants served by the project, and the total number of clients reported in the HMIS. 

Total number of participants served by the project: 
Total number of clients reported in the HMIS:   

If the project is not providing participant data in the HMIS – indicate one or more of the four 
(4) reason(s) for non-participation:

 Federal law prohibits (please cite specific law)  State law prohibits (please cite specific law)

  New project not yet in operation   Other (please specify prohibition) 

Also, for those participant records that were reported in the HMIS, indicate the percentage of 
values that were missing (“Null or Missing Values”) and/or unknown (“Don’t Know or 
Refused”). If there were no unknown values, note a “0” value. 

Data Collection Requirements 
All CoC Program funded projects are required to collect all of the Universal Data 

Elements and a select number of Program-Specific Data Elements. 
* Indicate the percentage of unduplicated client records with null or missing values

during the last 10 days of January 2023



13 

Universal Data Element 
(Use HMIS Data Quality Report) 

Records with 
no values (%) 

Records where value is 
refused or unknown (%) 

3.1 Name 
3.2 Social Security Number 
3.3 Date of Birth 
3.4 Race 
3.5 Ethnicity 
3.6 Gender 
3.7 Veteran Status 
3.8 Disabling condition 
3.917 Living Situation 
3.10 Project entry date 
3.11 Project exit date 
3.12 Destination 
3.15 Relationship to Head of 
Household 
3.16 Client Location 

Program Specific Data Element 
(From the most recent APR) 

Records with 
no values (%) 

Records where value is 
refused or unknown (%) 

4.2 Income and Sources 
4.3 Non-Cash Benefits 
4.4 Health Insurance 
4.5 Physical Disability 
4.6 Developmental Disability 
4.7 Chronic Health Condition 
4.8 HIV/AIDS 
4.9 Mental Health Problem 
4.10 Substance Abuse 
4.11 Domestic Violence 
4.17 Residential Move-In Date 

(RRH only) 

VI. Participation in Coordinated Entry System

CoC funded projects are required to participate in the local Coordinated Entry System. As 
defined by HUD: 



14 

“Coordinated entry is a key step in assessing the needs of homeless individuals and families 
and prioritizing them for assistance. In addition to engaging people who are seeking 
assistance, Coordinated Entry processes should be integrated with communities’ outreach 
work to ensure that people living in unsheltered locations are prioritized for help”. 
Coordinated Entry should achieve several goals: 

• Make it easier for persons experiencing homelessness or a housing crisis to access the 
appropriate housing and service interventions.

• Prioritize persons with the longest histories of homelessness and the most extensive 
needs.

• Lower barriers to entering programs or receiving assistance; and,
• Ensure that persons receive assistance and are housed as quickly as possible.2 

The definition of Centralized or Coordinated Assessment can be found at 24 CFR 578.3. 
Provisions at 24 CFR 578.7(a)(8) detail the responsibilities of the CoC with regard to establishing 
and operating such a system.  In addition to the definition, HUD also posted on the HUD 
Exchange the Coordinated Entry Policy Brief in February 2015 that helps inform local efforts to 
further develop CoCs’ coordinated entry processes. 

1. How many households (a household can be a single individual or family) entered your
program during the past 12 months? (July 1, 2022-July 1, 2023)

a. How many of the households that you stated in the question above entered your
project through the coordinated entry system?

2. If any households entered your program during the past 12 months that were not
referred through the coordinated entry system, please explain why in the box below
(expand box as needed).

Note: this information will be verified through HMIS. 

The purpose of the HUD’s System Performance Measures is to help communities gauge their 
progress in preventing and ending homelessness and provide a more complete picture of how 
well a community is achieving this goal. The performance of each project in the CoC is crucial in 
the overall performance of the CoC.  The source data for performance measures include the APR 
and System Performance Measures

VII. Performance Measures



15 

1. Bed Utilization for Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH)

A bed utilization rate is equal to the total number of people served on any given day divided by 
the total number of beds available on that day. Bed utilization rates below 65 percent are 
usually attributed to the project not entering all their clients into the HMIS or the project was 
under-utilized. Bed utilization rates above 105 means the project did not capture exit dates for 
all their clients and/or the project offered overflow beds. 

From your most recent APR, complete the table below on the point-in-time count of 
households served on the last Wednesdays in 

*Total # of Beds Total # of Clients 
Served 

Utilization Rate 

January 
April 
July 

October 
*The total number of beds should equal the number of beds submitted in your application.

2. Rapid Rehousing (RRH)

Rapid Re-Housing (RRH) provides short- or medium-term tenant-based rental assistance in 
community-based housing paired with necessary supportive services for homeless individuals 
and families (with or without a disability). RRH assistance usually begins prior to the client 
entering housing. Project performance is measured when client moves into permanent housing. 
Using data from HMIS during the past 12 months, answer the questions below: 

• Proposed number of households:
• Total number of households served:
• Total number of households moved into permanent housing:
• If the total number of households that move into permanent housing is lower

than the proposed number of households, please explain why in the box below
(expand box as needed).



16 

3. Employment and Income Growth

HUD’s System Performance Measure 2 – Change in employment income during the reporting 
period for program stayers. Meeting this criterion will be based on demonstrating that the 
percent of homeless adults being served in CoC Program projects increase their earned (i.e., 
employment) income. From your most recent APR, complete the table below to indicate the 
number of program stayers and leavers who increased employment or earned income. 

Total # 
of Adults in 
Program 

# of Adults with 
increased 

employment/ 
earned income 

% of adults with 
increased 

employment/ 
earned income 

Program Stayers 
Program Leavers 

4. Obtain and Maintain Permanent Housing

HUD’s System Performance Measure 7b: Successful Placement in or Retention of Permanent 
Housing. Meeting this criterion will be based on demonstrating an increase in the percent of 
persons served in permanent housing projects who retain permanent housing or exit to 
permanent housing destinations. 

# of Persons 
in Permanent Housing* 

# of Persons who 
remained in 

permanent housing 

# of Persons who exited 
from permanent housing 
to permanent housing 

*Permanent housing includes:
• Owned by client, no ongoing housing subsidy
• Owned by client, with ongoing housing subsidy
• Rental by client, no ongoing housing subsidy
• Rental by client, with VASH housing subsidy
• Rental by client, with GPD TIP housing subsidy
• Rental by client, with other ongoing housing subsidy
• Staying or living with family, permanent tenure
• Staying or living with friends, permanent tenure

Additional attachments:  Please attach the following system performance documentation 
for each project from the most recent complete grant term: 

HMIS Report #700 ‐ Length of Time Homeless (Safe Haven only) 
HMIS Report #700.1b ‐ Length of Time Homeless (all projects) 
HMIS Report #701 ‐ Exits to Permanent Housing with Returns to Homelessness 
HMIS Report #703 ‐ Employment and Income Growth 
HMIS Report #706 ‐ Permanent Housing Placement‐Retention 



17  

 VIII. HEARTH Act Compliance   
 

This section of the Letter of Intent (LOI) asks questions of all renewal projects to ensure 
compliance with the requirements of the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition 
to Housing (HEARTH Act): Continuum of Care (CoC) Program Interim Rule. (Please note, this 
section does not encompass all changes under the HEARTH Act, and it is recommended that all 
projects should review the Act in its entirety). 

 
1. Participation of homeless individuals 

 
The HEARTH Act CoC Program Interim Rule states that the recipient or subrecipient must 
document its compliance with the homeless participation requirements under § 578.75(g), 
which is as follows: 

 
(g) Participation of homeless individuals. 

(1) Each recipient and subrecipient must provide for the participation of not less 
than one homeless individual or formerly homeless individual on the board of 
directors or other equivalent policymaking entity of the recipient or subrecipient, 
to the extent that such entity considers and makes policies and decisions 
regarding any project, supportive services, or assistance provided under this 
part. This requirement is waived if a recipient or subrecipient is unable to meet 
such requirement and obtains HUD approval for a plan to otherwise consult with 
homeless or formerly homeless persons when considering and making policies 
and decisions. 

(2) Each recipient and subrecipient of assistance under this part must, to the 
maximum extent practicable, involve homeless individuals and families through 
employment; volunteer services; or otherwise in constructing, rehabilitating, 
maintaining, and operating the project, and in providing supportive services for 
the project. 

 
a. Does your agency provide for the participation of not less than one homeless 

individual or formerly  homeless individual on the board of directors or other 
equivalent policymaking entity of the recipient or sub recipient, to the extent that 
such entity considers  and makes policies and decisions  regarding any project, 
supportive services, or assistance provided under this part. This requirement is 
waived if a recipient or sub recipient is unable to meet such requirement and 
obtains HUD approval for a plan to otherwise consult with homeless or formerly 
homeless persons when considering and making policies and decisions? 

 
 Yes 
 No 

 
If not, please provide an action plan/timeline on when your agency will be compliant 
with this requirement in the following box (expand box as needed). 



18  

 

 
 

b. Does your agency, to the maximum extent practicable, involve homeless individuals 
and families through employment; volunteer services; or otherwise in constructing, 
rehabilitating, maintaining, and operating the project, and in providing 
supportive services for the project? 

 
 Yes 
 No 

 
If not, please provide an action plan/timeline as to when your agency will be compliant 
with this requirement in the box below (expand box as needed). 

 

 
 

2. Faith-based activities 
 

The HEARTH Act CoC Program Interim Rule states that the recipient or subrecipient must 
document its compliance with faith-based activities requirements under § 578.87(b), which is 
as follows: 

 
(b) ) Faith-based activities. 

(1) ) Equal treatment of program participants and program beneficiaries. 

(i) Program participants. Organizations that are religious or faith-based 
are eligible, on the same basis as any other organization, to participate in 
the Continuum of Care program. Neither the Federal Government nor a 
State or local government receiving funds under the Continuum of Care 
program shall discriminate against an organization on the basis of the 
organization’s religious character or affiliation. Recipients and 
subrecipients of program funds shall not, in providing program 
assistance, discriminate against a program participant or prospective 
program participant on the basis of religion or religious belief. 

(ii) Beneficiaries. In providing services supported in whole or in part with 
federal financial assistance, and in their outreach, activities related to 
such services, program participants shall not discriminate against current 
or prospective program beneficiaries on the basis of religion, a religious 



19 

belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or a refusal to attend or 
participate in a religious practice. 

(2) Separation of explicitly religious activities. Recipients and subrecipients of
Continuum of Care funds that engage in explicitly religious activities, including
activities that involve overt religious content such as worship, religious instruction, or
proselytization, must perform such activities and offer such services outside of
programs that are supported with federal financial assistance separately, in time or
location, from the programs or services funded under this part, and participation in
any such explicitly religious activities must be voluntary for the program beneficiaries
of the HUD-funded programs or services.

(3) Religious identity. A faith-based organization that is a recipient or subrecipient
of Continuum of Care program funds is eligible to use such funds as provided under
the regulations of this part without impairing its independence, autonomy,
expression of religious beliefs, or religious character. Such organization will retain
its independence from federal, State, and local government, and may continue to
carry out its mission, including the definition, development, practice, and expression
of its religious beliefs, provided that it does not use direct program funds to support
or engage in any explicitly religious activities, including activities that involve overt
religious content, such as worship, religious instruction, or proselytization, or any
manner prohibited by law. Among other things, faith-based organizations may use
space in their facilities to provide program-funded services, without removing or
altering religious art, icons, scriptures, or other religious symbols. In addition, a
Continuum of Care program-funded religious organization retains its authority over
its internal governance, and it may retain religious terms in its organization’s name,
select its board members on a religious basis, and include religious references in its
organization’s mission statements and other governing documents.

a. Does your proposed renewal program use direct program funds to support or
engage in any explicitly religious activities, including activities that involve overt
religious content, such as worship, religious instruction, or proselytization, or any
manner prohibited by law?

Yes 
No 

3. Involuntary family separation

The HEARTH Act CoC Program Interim Rule states that the recipient or subrecipient must 
document its compliance with involuntary family separation requirements under § 578.93(e), 
which is as follows: 

(e) Prohibition against involuntary family separation. The age and gender of a child under
age 18 must not be used as a basis for denying any family’s admission to a project that
receives funds under this part.



20 

a. Does the project accept all families with children under age 18 without regard to the
age of any child? In general, under the HEARTH Act, any project sponsor receiving
funds to provide emergency shelter, transitional housing, or permanent housing to 
families with children under age 18. 

Note there is an exception outlined in the Act: Project sponsors of transitional  housing receiving 
funds may target transitional housing resources to families with children of a specific age only 
if the project sponsor: (1) operates a transitional housing program that has a primary purpose 
of implementing evidence based practice that requires that housing units be targeted to families 
with children in a specific age group; and (2) provides assurances, as the Secretary shall require, 
that an equivalent appropriate alternative living arrangement for the whole family or household 
unit has been secured. 

 Yes. Project certifies that is accepts all families with children under age 18 without regard to 
the age of any child. 

 No. Project does not comply with this requirement. A narrative is attached explaining how 
the project will comply with this HEARTH Act requirement. 

 No.  Project does not comply with this requirement but qualifies for an exception because it 
is implementing an evidence- b a s e d  practice that requires housing units targeted to families 
with children in a specific age group. A narrative is attached explaining how the project will 
comply with the exception, including identification of the evidenced based practice being 
utilized. 

 N/A. Project does not serve families. 

 N/A. Project is new and has not started yet. 

4. Discrimination Policy

Federal and California State laws note that discrimination can be based on race, color, national 
origin or gender. Discrimination can also be based on age, religion, disability, familial status or 
sexual orientation. 



20 

Does your program deny services to potential recipients based on any of the following? 

• Age □ Yes □ No
• Color □ Yes □ No
• Disability □ Yes □ No
• Familial Status □ Yes □ No
• Gender □ Yes □ No
• Marital Status □ Yes □ No
• National Origin □ Yes □ No
• Race □ Yes □ No
• Religion □ Yes □ No
• Sexual Orientation □ Yes □ No

If you answered “yes” to any of the above, please explain why in the box below (expand
box as needed).

5. Active participation in local Continuum of Care meetings

HUD states that a successful CoC will have involvement from a variety of organizations 
representing the public and private sectors, as well as interested individuals within the CoC 
jurisdiction(s). These organizations should have an active role in the CoC. 

a. Describe what local Continuum of Care committees, subcommittees, and/or
working groups that your agency participates in on a regular basis in the box below
(expand box as needed). Please include the names and titles of those participating
as well as their level of involvement/participation.

6. Housing Quality Standards (HQS)

The HEARTH Act CoC Program Interim Rule states that the recipient or subrecipient must 
document its compliance with housing quality standards requirements under §  578.75(b), which 
is as follows: 



21 

(b) Housing quality standards. Housing leased with Continuum of Care program funds, or
for which rental assistance payments are made with Continuum of Care program funds,
must meet the applicable housing quality standards (HQS) under 24 CFR 982.401 of this
title, except that 24 CFR 982.401(j) applies only to housing occupied by program
participants receiving tenant-based  rental assistance. For housing rehabilitated with
funds under this part, the lead-based paint requirements in 24 CFR part 35, subparts A,
B, J, and R apply. For housing that receives project-based or sponsor-based rental
assistance, 24 CFR part 35, subparts A, B, H, and R apply. For residential property for
which funds under this part are used for acquisition, leasing, services, or operating
costs, 24 CFR part 35, subparts A, B, K, and R apply.

(1) Before any assistance will be provided on behalf of a program participant, the
recipient, or subrecipient, must physically inspect each unit to assure that the
unit meets HQS. Assistance will not be provided for units that fail to meet HQS,
unless the owner corrects any deficiencies within 30 days from the date of the
initial inspection and the recipient or subrecipient verifies that all deficiencies
have been corrected.

(2) Recipients or subrecipients must inspect all units at least annually during the
grant period to ensure that the units continue to meet HQS.

a. Does your project meet applicable Housing Quality Standards?

Yes 
No 
This is a new project and has not yet started 

Please briefly explain your inspection process for HQS in the box below (expand box as 
needed). 

b. Has your project received HQS corrective action plan in the last 2 years?

Yes 
No 
This is a new project and has not yet started 



22 

If you selected Yes, explain the nature of the concerns/issues and how it was resolved in 
the box below (expand the box as needed. 

IX. Cost Effectiveness

HUD states in the 2023 CoC Program Application that “CoCs should consider how much each 
project spends to serve and house an individual or family as compared to other projects 
serving similar populations.” 

HUD states that the project must be cost-effective and not deviate substantially from the norm 
in that locale for the type of activity including case management and other supportive services.  

1. Is your project cost-effective concerning case management and other supportive
services?

Yes 
No 
This is a new project and has not yet started 
Not applicable to this project 

If you answered “yes” or “no” please explain your response in the box below (expand 
box as needed). 

X. Miscellaneous Information

1. Match requirement

Match must equal 25 percent of the total grant request including Admin costs but excluding 
leasing costs (i.e., any funds identified for Leased Units and Leased Structures). Match must be 
met on an annual basis. HUD requires match letters to be submitted with the e-snaps 
application. Match contributions can be cash, in-kind, or a combination of the two; and, match 
must be used for an eligible cost as set forth in Subpart D of CoC Program interim rule.   



23 

For an in-kind match, the recipient may use the value of property, equipment, goods, or 
services contributed to the project, provided that, if the recipient or sub recipient had to pay 
for such items with grant funds, the costs would have been eligible. The full value of property or 
equipment can only be claimed once (i.e. renewal projects may only claim a portion of the value 
over the expected period of use – an ‘annual’ amount of the full value).  If third party services are 
to be used as match, the third party service provider that will deliver the services must 
enter into a memorandum of understanding (MOU) before the grant is executed documenting 
that the third part will provide such services and value towards the project. The MOU must 
contain specific information.  Please note that the following requirements apply to in-kind match 
documentation: 

• In-kind Contributions
1. Grantees/subrecipients using in-kind contributions may use the value of any real property,

equipment, goods, or services contributed to the project as match, provided that if the
recipients/subrecipients would have to pay for them with grant funds, the costs would be eligible.

2. During the term of the grant, the recipients/subrecipients must maintain and make available for
inspection records documenting the value of real property, equipment, goods, or services
contributed to the project as match.

3. Grantees/subrecipients must adhere to the requirements of 2 CFR 200.306 and must execute a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with any third party that will provide services before
grant execution per 24 CFR 578.73(c)(3).  Services provided by individuals must be valued at
rates consistent with those ordinarily paid for similar work in the recipient’s/subrecipient’s
organization.  If the recipient/subrecipient does not have employees performing similar work,
the rates must be consistent with those ordinarily paid by other employers for similar work in
the same labor market.  It is the responsibility of the recipient to provide evidence of cost
reasonableness.

4. For supportive services provided, an MOU must establish unconditional commitment, except
for selection to receive a grant, by the third party to provide the services, including the
following:

i. the specific service to be provided.
ii. the profession of the persons providing the service.

iii. the hourly cost of the service to be provided; and
iv. the total hours of service to be contributed to the project during the grant term.

5. During the term of the grant, the recipient/subrecipient must maintain and make available
inspection records documenting the service hours provided.

HUD also notes that all CoC Program activities are subject to environmental review requirements 24 CFR 
578.31 of the CoC Program interim rule. Specifically, the rule states that the recipient or subrecipient may not 
lease property for a project or commit or expend HUD or local funds for such eligible activities until HUD or 
the responsible entity (RE) has performed an environmental review of the project. HUD recommends a new 
review being conducted every five years, or sooner if environmental conditions have changed. Please review 
your environmental review record for the subject grant and ensure that the project is in compliance prior to 
expending any grant funds. 



24 

• Will your agency be able to provide the match requirement for your renewal project
(including a commitment letter or MOU)?

Yes 
No 

2. Exit Surveys

HUD encourages client surveys particularly exit surveys.

• Does your renewal program conduct exit surveys or interviews with clients?

Yes 
No 
This is a new project and has not yet started 
Not applicable to this project 

If no, please explain why in the box below (expand box as needed). 

XI. Attachments

Please note that all or a portion of the application can be denied if incomplete, if CoC Staff is unable 
to determine what applicant is proposing or whether the application does not meet minimum 
threshold requirements. 

With your application, please make sure to include the following documentation: 

Printed copy of the most recent HUD CoC Annual Performance Report (APR) 
Printed copy of eLOCCS expenditure report/close out report for the most completed grant term 
Intake procedures and program policies for following Housing First and Best Practices 
Copy of sample lease agreement used for program 
Staffing plan for project 
Copy of full program budget, including all funding sources 



July 12,2023

VC CoC GovernanceBoard

S U BJECT :R eceiveandFileaR eportonP rogresstoEndHom elessnessAm ongVeteransin
VenturaCounty.

VC CoC staffcontinuetohostquarterly m eetingsw ithveteranserviceproviderstodiscuss
veteranfocusedstreetoutreach,rapidre-housingandVAS H Vouchers,review specifichom eless
veterancasesandfocusonstrategiesforendingveteranhom elessnessinVenturaCounty.VC
CoC staffandHM IS arecollaboratingonupdatingthecurrentVeteransBy N am eL isttoinclude
housingm oveindatesforthoseplacedinP erm anentHousing. T hisaddeddatarequestw ill
supportCoordinatedEntry S ystem dataquality. Inadditiontoreporting,VC CoC staffandVA
staffcontinuetom eettodiscussandcoordinateeffortsonhow toachieveFunctionalZero,
EndingVeteranHom elessnessby 2024. Discussionsincludestream liningourprocess,capturing
m eaningfuldatafortrackingpurposesthatm eetfunctionalzerooutcom egoals,andrevising
w orkflow forim provedcoordinationam ongstallVeteranS erviceP roviders. VC CoC staffis
w orkingtoobtainS erviceExcellenceS upportw ithCounty CEO officetoaddresstheneedsofthe
com m itteeandoutreachingtoresourcessuchasU niteU S fordatasupportandtracking.T he
Veteran’sS ubcom m itteeiscom m ittedtoprocessim provem entandm eetingregularly tosupport
effortstow ardachievingFunctionalZero.VA staffandCoC S taffw illbeattendingvariousGreater
L A CES w orkgroupsduringthesum m ertolearnm oreabouttheirCES coordinationO neT eam
efforts(Veterancentricw orkgroups).

Hereisthesum m ary ofcurrentplacem entsfrom 10/1/2022-5/30/2023:
 32 hom elessveteranshavebeenissuedVeteranAffairsS upportiveHousing(VAS H)

vouchersandcontinuetosearchforaffordablehousingunits(duplicatedinS S VF
count).

 53 hom elessveteransw ereplacedintheS S VFR apidR e-Housing.Alloftheseveterans
arew orkingw iththeVeteranAffairsS upportiveHousing(VAS H)team forperm anent
housing. O fthe53 Veterans,7 havebeenplacedw ithaVAS H voucher,13 rentalby
clientand1 w ithfam ily andfriends.

 17 hom elessveteranhouseholdshavebeenstayinginP rojectR oom key m otelsfornon-
congregateshelter.T heseveteransarew orkingw ithGoldCoastVeteransFoundation,the
W holeP ersonCareteam andVeteranAffairstofindperm anenthousingandapply for
eligiblebenefits.O fthe17Veterans,2 havebeenplacedinP erm anentHousing.

 6 hom elessveteranshavebeenplacedinS alvationArm y’sVA GP D program . O fthe6
veterans,3 havebeenplacedinP erm anentHousing. S alvationArm y hasincreased
capacity ofem ergency shelterbedsforveteransw ithserviceanim als/em otionalsupport
anim als.

 22 hom elessveteranshavebeenservedintransitionalhousingatT urningP oint
Foundationw hilew orkingonahousingplan. O fthe22,3 havebeenplacedw itha
VAS H voucherand2 havebeenplacedinperm anenthousingand1 w ithfam ily and
friends.

 61 hom elessveteranshavebeenservedby streetoutreachservicesw ithGoldCoast
Veterans.O fthe61,3 havebeenplacedw ithaVAS H Voucher,and5 placedin
perm anenthousing.



In sum, during the 2022-23 program year, 40 homeless veterans have been permanently
housed through the efforts of SSVF, UWVC, Turning Point Foundation, Salvation Army, VASH
and other service providers. O fthose,13 w erehousedw ithVAS H vouchers,14 inprivate
rentalsw ithassistancefrom S S VFsecurity depositsand/orrentalassistanceandatotalof13 in
perm anenthousingorlivingw ithfam ily/friends.T odate,thereare7 availableVAS H Vouchers
w ithO xnardHousingAuthority,25 availablethroughVenturaHousingAuthority andatcapacity
w ithAreaHousingAuthority. Duringthe2023-24 Fiscalyear,m oreavailableresourcesw ill
becom eavailablethroughresourcessuchasU S Vetsw ith122 unitsforVeteransw ith54 units
dedicatedforhom elesslow incom eVeterans(30% and50% AM I).

Inordertoendhom elessnessam ongVeteransinVenturaCounty,w em ustm eetthefollow ing
criteriabasedonHU D guidance:

1) T he com m unity has iden�fied all Veterans experiencing hom elessness.
 O urcom m unity u�lizes aCoordinatedEntry S ystem w ithanow rongdoor

approach. T he Hom eless M anagem ent Inform a�on S ystem  (HM IS ) captures data on 
those repor�ng a veteran statusandserviceprovidersm akereferralstoS S VF
and/or Gold Coast Veterans Founda�on for assistance.

2) T hecom m unity providesshelterim m ediately toany Veteranexperiencingunsheltered
hom elessnessw how antsit.
 T herehasbeenanincreaseinthenum berofnon-congregateshelterbeds;

how ever,thelocalsheltershavebeenatfullcapacity.P rojectR oom key hasassisted
w ithplacem entw hentherearenootheravailableresourcesand S alva�on Arm y 
hasincreasedcapacity.

3) T hecom m unity providesservice-intensive transi�onal housing only inlim itedinstances.
 T urning P oint Founda�onandtheS alva�on Arm y Grant P er Diem  program con�nue 

to off er transi�onal housing to hom eless veterans seeking a perm anent housing 
placem ent.

4) T he com m unity has the capacity to assist Veterans to sw i� ly m ove into perm anent 
housing.
 VAS H vouchersares�ll availablethrough the public housing authori�es;how ever,

thenum berofvacantunitsw ithinFairM arketR ate(FM R )arevery lim ited.T he
U nitedW ay ofVenturaCounty L andlordEngagem entP rogram con�nues to focus
onrecrui�ngm orelandlordsw illingtoaccepthousingvouchers.

5) T hecom m unity hasresources,plans,andsystem capacity inplaceshouldany Veteran
becom ehom elessorbeatriskofhom elessnessinthefuture.
 M ore com prehensive outreach services are being off ered to ac�vely engage those 

experiencinghom elessnessandm akeim m ediatereferralstoservices.
Hom elessness P reven�on funding is available through various sources, including 
S S VFforVeteransandS tateofCaliforniagrantfunding.



July 12,2023

VC CoC GovernanceBoard

SUBJECT:  R eceive and file VC CoC Com m i� ee, W orkgroups and S taff updates

Housing & Services Committee: InApril2023,theVC CoC Boardm adearecom m endationtoleverage

resourcestoprioritizeorincreasesupportiveservicesforhousingretention.Inresponse,VC CoC staff

R eleasedaR equestforQ ualificationstosolicittechnicalassistanceto1)facilitateanassessm ent

addressingthechallengesaroundprovidingquality supportiveservices;2)determ inetheappropriate

caseloadratiosbasedondifferentsubpopulations;and3)developaS upportiveS ervicesP lantoinclude

bestpracticesforhousingnavigationandretention.T heassessm entw ouldincludeareview ofthe

currentsupportiveservicesdelivery system ,identificationofgapsandareasforim provem ent,asw ellas

recom m endationstoenhancesystem perform anceandim proveoutcom esforpersonsrecently housed.

T heplanshouldincludetheim plem entationofpeersupportandw raparoundservicesby leveraging

resources.R FQ saredueJuly 15,2023 andtheCoC DataP erform anceandEvaluationCom m itteew ill

review theR FQ sonAugust2,2023.Finalselectionw illbebroughttotheVC CoC BoardandH&S

Com m ittee.

HMIS Steering Commi� ee: Con�nuing to onboard program s onto HM IS , including Gold Coast Health 

P lan’s CalAIM  Care M anagem ent T eam . VC CoC staff con�nue to review  the onboarding requests to 

ensure priority is given to the appropriate program s. HM IS  staff is developing new  online training 

m odulestoallow new ly licenseduserstheability tocom pletetrainingrem otely.

Data, Performance & Evaluation Committee: T heDataCom m itteew illbereview ingandanalyzingthe

Hom elessHousingAssistanceandP revention(HHAP )P rogram Incom eFundsR FP applicationsonAugust

2,2023.Fundingrecom m endationsw illbebroughttotheVC CoC BoardinAugust2023.VC CoC staff

w illbeprovidingquarterly updatesw ithsystem perform ancem easuresfortheDataCom m itteeto

review . Datacom m itteew illreview R FQ sforS upportiveS ervices,R FQ saredueJuly 19,2023 andVC

CoC DataP erform anceandEvaluationCom m itteew illreview theR FQ sonAugust2,2023.Final

selectionw illbereview edby theVC CoC BoardandH&S Com m itteeforconsideration.

Public Information and Outreach Committee: ExpandingoutreachthroughVC CoC socialm ediato

educatethepublicandraiseaw arenessonhom elessnessissues.T hiscom m itteeisincorporatingpeople

w ithlivedexperiencethisyear.T hiscom m itteew illbem eetingonaquarterly basistoprovideadditional

tim etow orkondevelopingcom m unity outreachprojects. R ecom m endedcreativeprojectsinclude:

 S pecial(in-person)R oundtableS essionw ithP ersonsw ithL ivedExpertise(P L E)– com ingFall

2023 w ithatopicfilm screeninganddiscussion.



 YouT ubeChannel,FacebookandInstagram socialm ediaappsfordissem inationofnew s.

 N extP IO m eetingonJuly 26,2023 at1:30 pm .

Veterans Case Conference Workgroup: T hisw orkgroupisfocusedonendingVeteranhom elessnessin

VenturaCounty by ensuringreferralsarebeingm adetotheVeteranAffairsS upportiveHousing(VAS H)

program ,S upportiveS ervicesforVeteranFam ilies(S S VF)andotherlocalhousingproviders.

Youth Collabora� ve Workgroup: O ver 20 youth providers par�cipate in this w orkgroup. T hese 

providersensuredthatunaccom paniedhom elessyouthw erecountedinthe2023 Hom elessCountand

con�nue to w orkto establish a Youth Ac�on Board (YAB) for policy developm ent and planning. 

Staff Update:   VC CoC staff are currently w orking w ith L esar Developm ent Consultants on the 

countyw idestrategicplanw hich is in developm ent follow ing the quan�ta�ve and qualita�ve analysis of 

local hom eless program s and services. Also, staff are w orking on the consolidated applica�on for the 

HU D CoC N o�ce of Funding O pportunity (N O FO )thatw asreleasedonJuly 5,2023.T hisN O FO includes

collabora�on w ith partner organiza�ons and the ability to dem onstrate leveragingofotherresourcesto

reduce unsheltered hom elessness, including healthcare and housing resources. VC CoC staff w ill be 

reaching out for le� ers of supportandm em orandum sofunderstandinginsupportoftheN O FO .


	July 12, 2023 CoC Board Agenda
	Item 5 - Board Meeting Mintues June 14, 2023
	Item 6 - VCBH Presentation on Bridge Housing Grant
	Item 6a - VCBH Bridge Housing PPT
	Item 7 - Approval of HUD CoC Rank and Review Policy, LOI and RFP
	Item 7a - Draft 2023 Rank and Review Policy
	Item 7b - 2023 Letter of Intent to Renew CoC Project
	Item 8 - Report on Ending Homelessness Among Veterans
	Item 9 - Updates on VC CoC Committees, Workgroups and Staff

	CCR: 
	DUNS  or EUI: 
	Agency Name: 
	Agency Address: 
	City State ZIP: 
	Phone: 
	Fax: 
	Email: 
	Name: 
	Phone_2: 
	Email_2: 
	Name_2: 
	Phone_3: 
	Email_3: 
	Name_3: 
	Phone_4: 
	Email_4: 
	Name of Project: 
	Project Address: 
	Grant Amount: 
	Grant Term: 
	Expiration Date: 
	Program Type: 
	Primary Population: 
	Annual Renewal Amount for Project: 
	Total Number of UnitsBeds: 
	Budget AmountLeased Units: 
	Budget AmountLeased Structures: 
	Budget AmountRental Assistance: 
	Budget AmountSupportive Services: 
	Budget AmountOperations: 
	Budget AmountHMIS: 
	Budget AmountAdministration: 
	Budget AmountTotal: 
	Executive DirectorCEOPresident: 
	Date: 
	Text1: 
	Text2: 
	Signature Block3_es_:signer:signatureblock: 
	Signature Block4_es_:signer:signatureblock: 
	not yet expired and provide the date by which the APR must be submitted: 
	Check Box5: Off
	Check Box8: Off
	Check Box9: Off
	Date the oldest unresolved finding was issued: 
	but no final determination received: 
	Check Box10: Off
	Check Box11: Off
	Check Box12: Off
	Check Box13: Off
	grant agreement may be included in such an explanation: 
	Include the amount returned for each year: 
	Check Box14: Off
	Check Box15: Off
	Check Box16: Off
	Check Box17: Off
	Check Box18: Off
	Check Box19: Off
	Check Box20: Off
	Check Box21: Off
	Check Box22: Off
	Check Box23: Off
	Check Box24: Off
	Check Box25: Off
	Check Box26: Off
	Check Box27: Off
	Check Box28: Off
	Check Box29: Off
	Check Box30: Off
	Check Box31: Off
	Check Box32_es_:sender: Off
	Check Box33: Off
	Check Box34: Off
	Check Box35: Off
	Check Box36: Off
	Check Box37: Off
	Check Box38: Off
	Check Box39: Off
	Check Box40: Off
	Row1: 
	Row2: 
	Row3: 
	Row4: 
	Row5: 
	Row6: 
	Does this project provide client level data to HMIS at least annually: Off
	Total number of participants served by the project: 
	Total number of clients reported in the HMIS: 
	Federal law prohibits please cite specific law: Off
	New project not yet in operation: Off
	undefined_3: Off
	undefined_4: Off
	Records with no values 31 Name: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 31 Name: 
	Records with no values 32 Social Security Number: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 32 Social Security Number: 
	Records with no values 33 Date of Birth: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 33 Date of Birth: 
	Records with no values 34 Race: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 34 Race: 
	Records with no values 35 Ethnicity: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 35 Ethnicity: 
	Records with no values 36 Gender: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 36 Gender: 
	Records with no values 37 Veteran Status: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 37 Veteran Status: 
	Records with no values 38 Disabling condition: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 38 Disabling condition: 
	Records with no values 3917 Living Situation: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 3917 Living Situation: 
	Records with no values 310 Project entry date: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 310 Project entry date: 
	Records with no values 311 Project exit date: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 311 Project exit date: 
	Records with no values 312 Destination: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 312 Destination: 
	Records with no values 315 Relationship to Head of Household: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 315 Relationship to Head of Household: 
	Records with no values 316 Client Location: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 316 Client Location: 
	Records with no values 42 Income and Sources: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 42 Income and Sources: 
	Records with no values 43 NonCash Benefits: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 43 NonCash Benefits: 
	Records with no values 44 Health Insurance: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 44 Health Insurance: 
	Records with no values 45 Physical Disability: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 45 Physical Disability: 
	Records with no values 46 Developmental Disability: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 46 Developmental Disability: 
	Records with no values 47 Chronic Health Condition: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 47 Chronic Health Condition: 
	Records with no values 48 HIVAIDS: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 48 HIVAIDS: 
	Records with no values 49 Mental Health Problem: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 49 Mental Health Problem: 
	Records with no values 410 Substance Abuse: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 410 Substance Abuse: 
	Records with no values 411 Domestic Violence: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 411 Domestic Violence: 
	Records with no values 417 Residential MoveIn Date RRH only: 
	Records where value is refused or unknown 417 Residential MoveIn Date RRH only: 
	program during the past 12 months July 1 2020July 1 2021: 
	project through the coordinated entry system: 
	expand box as needed: 
	Total  of BedsJanuary: 
	Total  of Clients ServedJanuary: 
	Utilization RateJanuary: 
	Total  of BedsApril: 
	Total  of Clients ServedApril: 
	Utilization RateApril: 
	Total  of BedsJuly: 
	Total  of Clients ServedJuly: 
	Utilization RateJuly: 
	Total  of BedsOctober: 
	Total  of Clients ServedOctober: 
	Utilization RateOctober: 
	Proposed number of households: 
	Total number of households served: 
	Total number of households moved into permanent housing: 
	expand box as needed_2: 
	Total  of Adults in ProgramProgram Stayers: 
	 of Adults with increased employment earned incomeProgram Stayers: 
	 of adults with increased employment earned incomeProgram Stayers: 
	Total  of Adults in ProgramProgram Leavers: 
	 of Adults with increased employment earned incomeProgram Leavers: 
	 of adults with increased employment earned incomeProgram Leavers: 
	 of Persons in Permanent HousingRow1: 
	 of Persons who remained in permanent housingRow1: 
	 of Persons who exited from permanent housing to permanent housingRow1: 
	Check Box41: Off
	Check Box42: Off
	undefined_5: 
	with this requirement in the box below expand box as needed: 
	Check Box43: Off
	Check Box44: Off
	Check Box45: Off
	Check Box46: Off
	Check Box47: Off
	Check Box48: Off
	Check Box49: Off
	Check Box50: Off
	Check Box51: Off
	Does your program deny services to potential recipients based on any of the following: Off
	undefined_6: Off
	box as needed: 
	undefined_7: 
	needed: 
	Check Box52: Off
	Check Box53: Off
	Check Box54: Off
	Check Box55: Off
	Check Box56: Off
	Check Box57: Off
	the box below expand the box as needed: 
	box as needed_2: 
	Check Box58: Off
	Check Box59: Off
	Check Box60: Off
	Check Box61: Off
	If no please explain why in the box below expand box as needed: 
	Check Box62: Off
	Check Box63: Off
	Check Box64: Off
	Check Box65: Off
	Check Box66: Off
	Check Box67: Off
	Check Box68: Off
	Check Box69: Off
	Check Box70: Off
	Check Box71: Off
	Check Box72: Off
	Check Box73: Off


